#### I. STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

The issues are:

- 1. Did the Court by not addressing the mistakes/or fraud placed upon the court in the updating of Appellants complaints to address the statute of limitations?
- 2. Did the Court err by not addressing that Appellants did not have to take it before the election commission under Rule 23 because the Appellees were sued in civil suit for failure to perform a non-discretionary duty to place Appellants names on the ballot.

#### II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of the Case

This is an appeal by Marian Allen and Flex Fenderson from an order of the Circuit Court of the Second Judicial District of Jones County, Mississippi, dated July 30, 2010. Appellant's names were removed form a ballot even though Appellants were certified by City of Laurel Clerk's Office to be on the May 3, 2005 ballot. Appellants also filed a civil suit against Appellees, Federal Judge David Bramlette-Order on Remand on August 11, 2009 for Appellants state claims against the City of Laurel and Mary Ann Hess.

B. Course of Proceedings

On January 2, 2006, Appellants filed their complaint in the Circuit Court of Jones County.

On February 6, 2006, Appellants filed Notice of a claim.

On February 15, 2007 the Federal Government moved this case to the District Court of Mississippi.

On August 11, 2009 Judge Bramlette remanded this case back to the Circuit Court of Jones for Appellants state claims against The City of Laurel and Mary Ann Hess.

On September 30, 2009 Supreme Court appointed Judge Bridges. Judge Bridges rescued himself.

On December 3, 2009 the Supreme Court appointed Judge Frank Vollor.

On January 13, 2010 Appellants requested Summary Judgement during the hearing. Judge Vollor stated that two material facts exist in this case before he can grant Summary Judgement for the Appellants. (1) Notice of Intent to Sue filing date and (2) A Statue of Limitations.

On July 30, 2010 Judge Vollor granted Summary Judgement for the Appellees for the following reasons:

- A. Appellants did not pursue their election contests in according to the Election Code, Title 23 of Mississippi Code.
- B. Appellants failed to file their complaint within the statue of limitations 11-46-11(3) MCA and/or 15-1-69MCA.
- C. C. Appellants state law claim were based alleged violations of the Federal Constitution and Preclearance under the Voting Rights Act. All underlying federal claims have been dismissed.
- D. Appellees are immune from Appellants' claim under Mississippi Tort Claim Act.

#### C. Statement of Facts

\*Appellants' names were removed from a ballot.

\*There is no authority in state law for a municipal party executive committee or City Clerk to remove one of members on it's own motion. (MS Attorney General Opinion dated August 5, 2005).

\*The lower court ignored fraud that was stated I Appellants Summary Judgement .The Court failed to address the fraud placed upon the court about the updating of the Appellants Complaint filing date. This court had direct evidence that the Appellants filed their complaint On January 2, 2006 and the Clerk of Court updated the complaint December 29, 2006 intentionally placing Appellants complaints' out of compliance with statute of limitations.

\*The court did not address Appellant's pleading that the Appellees were not immune from claims under the Mississippi Tort Claims Act.

III. Summary of Argument

The Court erred in not granting Summary Judgement for the Appellant's state law claims against Appellees City of Laurel and Mary Ann Hess. It was the ministerial duty of Mary Ann Hess to place the Appellants name on the ballot. This issue did mandate that Appellants had to precede under the Election Codes. There was also nothing in the election codes that Appellants could not pursue civil actions for violations of laws under the Mississippi Tort Act.

IV. Argument

۱

A. Judge Vollor has placed inference on the filing date of the Appellants complaint and that the statute of limitations barred this cause. The Appellants filed this cause on January 2, 2006. As per Receipt No. 19956 but the Clerk of Court dated Appellant's for December 29, 2006. As a matter of fact, Appellants had C. Brook the Clerk of Court to copy the entire complaint package the same Receipt No. 19957 of record clearly show the date. On September 30, 2009 Supreme Court appointed Judge Bridges. Judge Bridges rescued himself.

On December 3, 2009 the Supreme Court appointed Judge Frank Vollor.

On January 13, 2010 Appellants requested Summary Judgement during the hearing. Judge Vollor stated that two material facts exist in this case before he can grant Summary Judgement for the Appellants. (1) Notice of Intent to Sue filing date and (2) A Statue of Limitations.

On July 30, 2010 Judge Vollor granted Summary Judgement for the Appellees for the following reasons:

- A. Appellants did not pursue their election contests in according to the Election Code, Title 23 of Mississippi Code.
- B. Appellants failed to file their complaint within the statue of limitations 11-46-11(3) MCA and/or 15-1-69MCA.
- C. C. Appellants state law claim were based alleged violations of the Federal Constitution and Preclearance under the Voting Rights Act. All underlying federal claims have been dismissed.
- D. Appellees are immune from Appellants' claim under Mississippi Tort Claim Act.

#### C. Statement of Facts

\*Appellants' names were removed from a ballot.

\*There is no authority in state law for a municipal party executive committee or City Clerk to remove one of members on it's own motion.(MS Attorney General Opinion dated August 5, 2005).

\*The lower court ignored fraud that was stated I Appellants Summary Judgement .The Court failed to address the fraud placed upon the court about the updating of the Appellants Complaint filing date. This court had direct evidence that the Appellants filed their complaint On January 2, 2006 and the Clerk of Court updated the complaint December 29, 2006 intentionally placing Appellants complaints' out of compliance with statute of limitations.

\*The court did not address Appellant's pleading that the Appellees were not immune from claims under the Mississippi Tort Claims Act.

III. Summary of Argument

The Court erred in not granting Summary Judgement for the Appellant's state law claims against Appellees City of Laurel and Mary Ann Hess. It was the ministerial duty of Mary Ann Hess to place the Appellants name on the ballot. This issue did mandate that Appellants had to precede under the Election Codes. There was also nothing in the election codes that Appellants could not pursue civil actions for violations of laws under the Mississippi Tort Act.

IV. <u>Argument</u>

١

A. Judge Vollor has placed inference on the filing date of the Appellants complaint and that the statute of limitations barred this cause. The Appellants filed this cause on January 2, 2006. As per Receipt No. 19956 but the Clerk of Court dated Appellant's for December 29, 2006. As a matter of fact, Appellants had C. Brook the Clerk of Court to copy the entire complaint package the same Receipt No. 19957 of record clearly show the date.

Appellants mailed their Notice of a Claim on February 8, 2006. Appelles admitted they had received a Notice of a Claim in the record.

In further defense of the Notice of a Claim, the Appellants substantially compiled with the requirements, or in the alternative, the City of Laurel waived the ninety- day period , by not requesting a Stay .City of Pascagoula v. Tomlinson,741 So.2d 224(Miss.1999), and Jackson v. City of Booneville 738 So.2d 124 (Miss. 1999).

In Tomlinson, the Plaintiff did not strictly follow the ninety-day notice requirement when he filed suit two weeks after providing notice of claim ld. Instead of dismissing the lawsuit, the Court held the proper remedy was to require the government entity to request a stay of the lawsuit ,ld. Should the government entity not request a stay, the issue would be considered waived.ld at 229. See also Williams v. Clay County,861 So. 2d.953,977(Miss. 2003); Leflore County v. Givens 754 So. 2d 1223,1231-32 (Miss. 2000) and Jones v. Miss School for the Blind 758 So. 2d 428,429 (Miss. 2000).

Over the years since the 1990's Judicial interpretation of the Notice requirement and the 90 day waiting period have resulted in evolving and changing Court pronouncements of the actions that satisfy these provision from strict compliance to substantial compliance and then in June of 2006 back to strict compliance. South Central Regional Medical Center vs. Guffy 930 So. 2d 1252,1258 (Miss 2006).

Since, the Appellants filed their Notice of a Claim on February 6, 2006, the Appellants should be retroactive back to the substantial compliance before the strict compliance was reinstated in 2006 by the Supreme Court.

B. Appellants pled that even though these were election laws; the City of Laure; had a Ministerial duty to place the Appellants names on the ballot once they had qualified. The Appellants pled that an act is not discretionary when imposed by law. Womack v. City of Jackson 804 So. 2d 1041(15)(Miss. 2002). Quoting L.W. McComb Separate Municipal School District 754 So. 2d 1136,1141 (Miss. 1999). The lower court dismissed this case on these issues but refused to address Appellants defenses.

#### V. <u>Conclusion</u>

١

This case has sat for FIVE(5) YEARS in a court of law. The Federal Court pointed out that the Appellants did not have Federal claims but remanded the case back to the Circuit Court of Jones County for the State Claims. The Order dismissed all parties involved EXCEPT The City of Laurel and Mary Ann Hess. Governmental officials performing discretionary functions generally are shielded from liability for civil damages insofas as their conduct does not violate clearly established statutory or constitutional rights of which a reasonable person would have known. Harlow v. Fitzgerald 457 U.S. 800,818(1982). An act is not discretional but ministerial if the duty is one which has been positively imposed by law and its performance required at a time and in a manner or under conditions which are being dependent upon the officer's judgement or

4

discretion. Steward ex rel. Womack v. City of Jackson, 804 So. 2d. 1041,1048(15)(Miss. 2002)(quoting L.W. McComb Separate Municipal School District 754 So. 2d. 1136,1141(Miss.1999).

Mary Ann Hess had no discretionary when it came to placing the Appellants' names on the ballot after qualification.

Every citizen knows that a person's name can not be removed from a ballot after qualification/certification by the Clerk of Courts even if elector died.

In conclusion, the 14<sup>th</sup> Amendment is a long standing fundamental right of a citizen. The Appellants had a fundamental right to fairness and proper due process in the lower court which they did not receive.

For the above reasons, Appellants request that this court reverse the lower court's ruling and render a judgement in favor of the Appellants.

Appellants request Summary Judgement as a Matter of Law and damages in the amount of \$500,000 and the performance bond of Mary Ann Hess.

Respectfully submitted this is day April, 2011

۱

۱

Marian Allen, Pro Se

ix Fénderson, Pro Se

5