IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

2010-TS-01314

MARIAN ALLEN FELIX FENDERSON

APPELLANTS

VS.

CITY OF LAUREL, AND MARY ANN HESS

APPELLEES

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF JONES COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT CAUSE NUMBER 207-cv-34

BRIEF OF APPELLEES, THE CITY OF LAUREL, AND MARY ANN HESS

NO ORAL ARGUMENT REQUIRED

V.K. SMITH, III, MSB BRYAN NELSON, P.A. 6524 U.S. HIGHWAY 98 HATTIESBURG, MS 3402-8569 TELEPHONE: (601) 261-4100 FACSIMILE: (601) 261-4106

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

I. Facts

The Plaintiffs filed their Complaint in this matter on December 29, 2006. This Complaint alleged that various defendants conspired to remove a qualified candidate's name from a ballot. (R 3). Presumably, the election, which is the subject of this Complaint, was to occur on May 3, 2005. (See Exhibits "J" and "K" to the Complaint, R 30 and 31).

The initial Complaint named a number of defendants. The case was then removed by the United States Department of Justice. In due course, the federal claims were dismissed and the state law claims against The City of Laurel and Mary Ann Hess were remanded to state court. (R 114-145).

II. Summary of Argument

The Plaintiff's Complaint fails for several reasons. The first is that a claim for monetary damages does not state a claim for relief as a result of an election. The proper remedy is an election contest. Secondly, the Plaintiffs have failed to comply with the requirements of the Mississippi Tort Claim Act, and even if they have, the City has not waived its immunity and is still immune pursuant to the Mississippi Tort Claim Act. Finally, the claim is barred by the statute of limitations.

The Complaint itself does not identify which candidates were left off of the ballot. Based upon Exhibit "J" and Exhibit "L" to the Complaint, the people who were left off were presumably the Appellants here.

III. Argument

A. Failure to State a Claim

At the outset, it is fairly clear that the Plaintiffs' complaints for damages do not state a cause of action. The Plaintiffs have sued a number of people. The only remaining Defendants are the City of Laurel and Mary Ann Hess, the City Clerk. Apparently, the Plaintiffs' complaint is that the Laurel Municipal Democratic Executive Committee removed them from the Committee. Additionally, they were apparently disqualified as candidates for the May 3 election. This is a decision made by the Democratic Executive Committee. (See Exhibit "J" and "K" to Complaint). The letters which make up these Exhibits tell the Appellants how to contest this decision. There is no showing that the contest was ever made.

The Plaintiffs have now filed this lawsuit against the City and City Clerk in an attempt to collect monetary damages. Appellees have been unable to find any Mississippi cases recognizing causes of action for damages as a result of an election. A similar issue was addressed, however, in *Hutchinson v. Miller*, 797 F.2d 1279 (4th Cir. 1986).

In *Hutchinson*, the plaintiffs were three unsuccessful candidates for public office. The defendants included various governmental officials as well as certain private citizens. The Complaint was filed pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1983, 18 U.S.C. §1964 (Racketeering Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act – "RICO") and West Virginia common law. The Fourth Circuit noted that equitable relief may occasionally be appropriate, but held that federal courts "do not sit to award post-election damages to defeated candidates." Similar reasons should apply here. The state election code provides the Plaintiffs with a remedy to either attempt to have their names included on the ballot or to contest the results after the election. The Plaintiffs chose not to do so. To allow the

Plaintiffs to sue for damages would put a trial judge or possibly a jury in a position to award damages and essentially overrule the will of the people conceivably, without ever setting aside the results of the election.

Mississippi simply does not recognize a cause of action for monetary damages under the facts as alleged by the Plaintiffs.

If a cause of action exists, it is barred by the Mississippi Tort Claim Act.

Section 11-46-3 of the Mississippi Code affirms the longstanding doctrine that the State and its municipalities are immune from tort claims unless otherwise waived. Section 11-46-5 of the Mississippi Code waives that immunity subject to certain limitations. Section 11-46-9 of the Mississippi Code then goes on to provide certain exemptions. The first of these exemptions is set forth in §11-46-9(1)(a) of the Mississippi Code. This subsection recognizes that a governmental entity is not liable for any claim "arising out of a legislative or judicial action or inaction, or administrative action or inaction of a legislative or judicial nature;" it does not define a legislative or judicial action. Subsection (d) provides immunity for employees exercising a discretionary function. Just as significantly as these immunities, is the fact that the initial decision regarding candidates is made by the Laurel Municipal Democratic Executive Committee. This is the organization which initially qualifies candidates and forwards information to the City Clerk. Nowhere in the Plaintiffs' Complaint or any supporting documents is it shown that these Plaintiffs were the candidates certified by the local committee. If, for some reason, the City Clerk was faced with conflicting information regarding who the candidates were, then this clearly falls under a discretionary function.

Finally, the Plaintiffs' Complaint was not filed within the time required by the Tort Claim Act and is accordingly barred by the statute of limitations. The election was on May 3, 2005. The

Complaint was not filed until December 29, 2006.

Conclusion

The Plaintiffs chose not to go to court prior to the election to have their names added to the ballot. They have also failed to file a proper election contest. It would be poor public policy to allow them to ignore the available remedies but instead pursue this suit for monetary damages. Accordingly, the trial court should be affirmed.